AFFIANT’S DECLARATION
Page No 1 of Attachment A

I, Ronald J. Wright, declare under penalty of perjury that the following is true to the best of my knowledge.  I am retired police officer from the State of California having served thirty-five years with the Riverside Police Department, CA.  I was a police detective for approximately twenty years.  I was assigned to our Economic Crimes Unit for approximately five years.  In that capacity I had the responsibility of investigating complex frauds, conspiracies, check forgeries, credit card fraud, identity theft and embezzlements.  I have conducted complex criminal investigations where business and clandestine records including those stored on computers or other electronic media were used to prove criminal offenses. I have written and served hundreds of search warrants including high tech and computer related crimes.  I am a former member of the High Technology Crime Investigation Association (HTCIA). I have coordinated many complex criminal cases where charges were filed and were successfully prosecuted.

I have received the following education and training, an AA Degree with distinction from Riverside Community College in Administration of Justice and Physical Science, a BA Degree in Political Science with honor from CA State University, Fullerton, and a Masters of Administration (Public administration) from the University of California, Riverside.  I graduated number one academically from the Riverside Sheriff’s Police Academy.  I have a California P.O.S.T. Basic, Intermediate and Advanced Certificates. I have a full-time California Community College Instructor’s Credential in the subject areas of Police Science and Public Services and Administration. I have taught forensics and crime scene investigations and controversial issues in law enforcement for ITT Technical Institute in their criminal justice bachelors program.

Based on my training and experience I believe there is strong probable cause to believe that Gavin Cooley knowingly violated RCW 18.04.345.  Cooley by allowing his CPA license to expire is no longer constrained by the professional ethics of CPAs and subject to regulation under state and federal law. Cooley either knowingly or tacitly allowed the letters “CPA” to appear after his name on the City of Spokane Treasury Department’s webpage.  The effect of which misleads bond agents, bond investors, and bond raters alike.  Cooley by his actions aided and abetted a criminal enterprise as defined in the Federal RICO Act to commit a municipal bond fraud.  Cooley in his deference to this criminal enterprise allows it to continue. This criminal enterprise will likely commit further frauds that will yet again victimize the citizens of Spokane if it is not destroyed.

As a private citizen, taxpayer, stakeholder in the Municipal Corporation known as the City of Spokane, I am investigating a bond fraud that has the potential to exceed $100 million dollars.  To wit: the River Park Square Bond Fraud (RPS); the RPS Bailout (AKA RPS Settlement Agreement) – a second fraud commented to conceal the first bond fraud et al; and the manslaughter death of Joe Savage in the RPS Parking Garage.  The Savage death in my professional opinion was the direct result of actions, omissions and failure of due diligence by the Cowles Co et al regarding the safety of its patrons in the parking garage. Entwined in these frauds was the illegal issuance of a Section 108 HUD loan for $23 million dollars secured on behalf of the City of Spokane for the RPS developer to 

fund the RPS expansion project.  The Cowles Co, the developer (Betsy Cowles) of the RPS expansion project, refused to issue a letter of credit as collateral for this HUD loan as is the normal practice for securing a HUD loan.  

Instead the City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) money was placed as collateral ahead of the developer’s financial resources to secure this HUD loan.  It was this Machiavellian funding scheme to avoid the required letter of credit that set the stage for the second fraud – the RPS Bailout.  The first RPS Parking Garage bonds went into default because the appraised value of and projected parking revenue of the RPS Parking Garage was excessively inflated.  This inflated financial information as well as other material facts were concealed from the institutional municipal bond investors that purchased the first RPS bonds.  These bondholders successfully sued the City of Spokane and others for this fraud.  The City’s CDBG money was at risk because of the HUD loan was in danger of going into default.  The City’s CDBG money in effect was being held hostage as well as the City’s bond rating because of this bond fraud.   To bail out the City’s CDBG money and its credit rating, the Spokane City Council approved infamous RPS Bailout (AKA the RPS Settlement Agreement) to the detriment of the citizens of Spokane.  In my opinion this agreement was nothing less than an extortion, consummated by the perpetrators, the Cowles Co et al, to rob the citizens of Spokane of nearly $45 million dollars.  The perpetrators had they been pursued for this bond fraud et al would have in turn exposed the complicit city officials to criminal prosecution.  This was a case of mutually assured destruction. 

I have reviewed the evidence including: The collective works of investigative reporters Tim Connors and Larry Shook published by Camas Magazine (http://www.camasmagazine.com/articles/searchArticle.asp) I interviewed former Spokane Mayor John Talbott; former Councilperson Cherie Rodgers and many others.  In my opinion the Cowles Co, the developer of RPS et al, is a criminal enterprise as defined in the Federal RICO Act.  This criminal enterprise has systemically co-opted/corrupted the City of Spokane government. The IRS in as much concluded the same in its ruling disallowing the tax-exempt status of the first RPS municipal bonds. A nonprofit foundation, The Spokane Downtown Foundation was formed to receive the money from the first RPS bonds that were issued on its behalf by the City of Spokane to expand the RPS Parking Garage in a joint public/private development.  This was done to obtain the tax-exempt status for municipal bonds. The IRS found this foundation to be sham saying it was effectively controlled by the Cowles Co. 

. . . bluntly concluding that the underlying purpose of the transaction was to “unjustly” enrich Cowles real estate companies, saying that “from the start” the transaction was intended to deliver private benefits to Cowles companies “to the detriment of the public.” 

. . . the IRS concurs with Camas Magazines’ earliest conclusions that public officials working with Betsy Cowles and her agents deliberately manipulated 

appraisals to the new garage as a cover for the laundering of well over $10 million in unlawful profits to the Cowles real estate companies.
. . . Referring to the nonprofit Spokane Downtown Foundation, which Cowles set up to sell the RPS garage bonds, the report makes a pointed observation: "It is clear from the facts of this case, the developer had, and continues to have a particular relationship with the City of Spokane and the Issuer/Foundation such that it was in a position to control or influence its activities."
For specifics references see reporting by Camas Magazine, “Inside Job: The Paper Trail” attached as Exhibit 1.  See the facts and circumstances surrounding the manslaughter death of Jo Savage in the RPS Parking Garage on 04-08-06 that was successfully covered up - see Savage Manslaughter Case Summary attached as Exhibit 2. See the causes of actions to bring a civil RICO prosecution against the Cowles Co et al - Cowles Co RICO Case Summary attached as Exhibit 3.  See reporting by Camas, “The Casino Was Rigged” (The IRS tax case ruling on the first RPS bonds) attached as Exhibit 4. The purpose of my investigation was to collect evidence and testimony to bring a federal class action RICO prosecution against the Cowles Co and all who aided and abetted it carry out these frauds on behalf of the citizens of Spokane [18 U.S.C. Section 1964(c)].

Larry Shook, who has on-the-record statements from Gary Ceriani, lead plaintiff attorney in the RPS securities fraud case, told me that Ceriani expected to win his securities fraud case on two points alone. As Shook summarized the first was Betsy Cowles's express intent to hide the use of the $23 million HUD loan to subsidize construction of a new Nordstrom store. In a memo to her colleagues, Cowles made clear that she wanted the Nordstrom subsidy hidden. (See Cowles's "Divide and Conquer" memo, attached to the Camas story, "Missing Man," attached as Exhibit 5).  Under federal securities law, this was an illegal secret. Cowles also was able to enlist the help of city council members in demanding that reference to the subsidy be purged from a public report prepared for the city by the Coopers & Lybrand accounting firm. (See Camas, "Where Did the Money Go?" attached as Exhibit 6).  This is clear evidence of an illegal conspiracy on the part of the developer and various public officials to deceive both purchasers of the RPS garage bonds and Spokane taxpayers, whose municipal credit had been illegally lent to secure those bonds. 

The second point was the conspiracy that the developer induced an astonishing cast of characters, including public officials, to enter into with her to hide the loss of nearly half the revenue needed to pay off the RPS bonds. (See Camas, "Under the Influence" attached as Exhibit 7.) According to Shook, Ceriani told him that the other evidence in his voluminous 91- point Omnibus Statement of Facts was merely added emphasis to make clear just how blatant was the RPS securities fraud. (See Ceriani’s Omnibus Statement attached to Camas reporting, "Fraudville, USA" attached as Exhibit 8).  This second point--the hidden loss of revenue needed to defease the RPS parking garage bonds--is particularly illustrative of the lurid nature of the RPS fraud.  As "Under the Influence" documents  (See Exhibit 7), the RPS developer and her agents were able to induce various attorneys and public officials to accept an illegal contract to keep the illegal secret that default on the RPS bonds was guaranteed by the loss of revenues needed to pay them off. This was a scheme created, endorsed, and facilitated by attorneys. At the time this illegal agreement was created, proceeds from the RPS bond sale had not cleared escrow. The whole RPS fiasco could have been avoided if just one of the many parties to this illegal secret had disclosed it, as they were required to do under federal securities law.

I received information on 01-29-10 from a reliable citizen informant (CI) that a potential principal in this second fraud the RPS Settlement Agreement, Gavin Cooley the current CFO of the City of Spokane, has used the term “CPA” in violation of RCW 18.04.345 a misdemeanor RCW 18.04.340.  The CI learned on 01-29-10 that Gavin Cooley had let his CPA license expire.  The CI also received an announcement from the Washington Society of Certified Public Accountants (WSCPA) for a continuing education course hosted by the Spokane Chapter where Cooley is listed as a presenter.  The title “CPA” appears after his name.  The CI called the WSCPA main office.  The CI asked if Cooley was a CPA.  The person who answered the phone checked and said Cooley was not.  The CI then told this person about the announcement for the event in Spokane.  The person said they had already received one other call about the same announcement but had not seen it.  The CI provided me a copy of this announcement on 02-02-10.  A copy of this announcement is attached as Exhibit 9.

I telephoned the WA State Board of Accountancy on 01-29-10.  I spoke with “Meranda” who told me that Cooley had let his CPA license expire on 06-30-06.  I also searched the City of Spokane website and discovered this page, “City of Spokane Treasurers Office” listing Gavin Cooley with “CPA” after his name:

Investment Policy

The City has an investment policy to establish prudent objectives for the City's investment program and delineate the practices used by the City to invest funds and control portfolio risks.

The authority to manage the City's investment program is derived from Spokane Municipal Code chapter 7.15 which delegates responsibility for the City's investment program to the City Investment Committee.

City Investment Committee

Gavin Cooley, CPA, Chairman - (509) 625-6586
Ellen Dolan, CFA, Vice Chairman - (509) 625-6035
Pam Dolan, CPA, Secretary - (509) 625-6034

On 02-01-10 at 12:50PM I made a screen print of this webpage whose URL address is:

http://www.spokanecity.org/departments/finance/treasury/policy/
I saved a screen print of this page as a PDF file.  I have attached a copy of this file “City of Spokane Treasurers Office” as Exhibit 10.

On 02-01-10 I again spoke with the CI.  The CI said in 2007 an email from a Spokane citizen was sent to City of Spokane that was circulated to City Officials.  This email disclosed that Gavin Cooley’s CPA license had expired and was questioning the effect it would have on the City. The CI said that Cooley sent an email to the City Council in effect saying he was no longer licensed as a CPA.  Cooley said that there was nothing in his job description that required him to possess a CPA license.  Cooley said this would not affect the City’s financial position.

On 02-05-10 I was able to locate the citizen who sent this email to the City:

Donna L. McKereghan

709 E. Indiana

Spokane, WA 99207

Ms. McKereghan, a member of the WA State Legislative Ethics Board, responded by email and confirmed that she had sent an email to the City regarding the lapse of Gavin Cooley’s CPA license.  She expressed concern if this would affect the City’s financial agreements. This is an excerpt of her several email responses to me:

I can't find the original of the email you mention at the moment, though I'm sure I have it.  What I did find right away was the summary I submitted to the State Auditor's Office in which one of the emails addresses it.  I've attached that summary.  Of course, these are only copies of my email and, thus, don't have the original headers but, again, I'm sure I have the original, I just need to dig deeper in the archives to find it. . .

. . . I had a conversation with Gavin about this and he told me that it was a misunderstanding and that whether or not it was a violation depended on interpretation of the law and the City did not interpret the law the same way the Board of Accountancy had. . .

. . . So, City Legal, the Attorney General's Office and the State Auditor's office all had that email.  I don't remember who told me that Gavin claimed that his job 
didn't require that he be a CPA, but I heard that he'd said as much.  I didn't hear that he'd claimed that it wouldn't affect the City's financial status, as that was never mentioned, at least to me, and it's hearsay, in any event.  However, his direct response to me was verbal and after a City Council meeting, right outside the back doors.  I asked him about it, point blank, and he said the State interpreted the law differently (from him or from City legal, he didn't specify) and that there wasn't any actual problem, just some confusion and that "we're" straightening it out.  Again, he didn't say nor did I ask who the "we" referred to.  I wasn't particularly interested in who was making the claim about State Law or who was 

straightening it out.  I was interested in what he had to say about it and that's what he said when I asked him about it. 

Below is an excerpted copy of Ms. McKereghan’s email with the portion regarding Gavin Cooley’s CPA license status. It should be noted that Terri Pfister is the City Clerk of the City of Spokane, Pat Dalton is an Assistant City Attorney for the City of Spokane and Tim Ford is the Open Government Ombudsman for the WA Attorney General’s Office:

----- Original Message ----- 
From: Donna McKereghan 

To: Pfister, Terri 

Cc: Tim Ford ; Dalton, Pat 

Sent: Wednesday, November 28, 2007 4:13 AM
Subject: Public Records and Open Meetings
 
Thanks, Terri. . .

Finally, I received an email this afternoon in which the sender claimed that our CFO, Gavin Cooley, is no longer a Certified Public Accountant because he let his certification lapse and that he cannot, therefore, be held responsible for his work product.   Of course, 
City employees are indemnified, so my concern is not about holding him personally accountable - as is apparently the senders concern - and I have no reason to believe there's any issue over which he would be held accountable, in any event.  However,  I *am* concerned that this may create problems relative to the State and Federal documents that he signs on behalf of the City, as our CFO.  The City was sited in last year's audit for non-compliance in the Federal grant process and I surely would hate to see us lose Federal grants for continuing violations of the requirements of these processes.
 
Sincerely,
 
Donna L. McKereghan
Ms. McKereghan sent me another email on 02-06-10.  Ms. McKereghan had found the original email with its original header information. This email is attached as Exhibit 11.  

The City of Spokane’s Municipal Code places the treasury department under the direct supervision of the Chief Financial Officer (Gavin Cooley):

Section 03.01.410 Chief Financial Officer

A. The chief financial officer supervises the heads of the departments of accounting, management and budget, treasurer, and risk management. The chief financial officer manages the budget, supervises the internal/tax auditor, coordinates debt issuances and is responsible for establishing and maintaining sound fiscal management practices throughout the City.

Another person and previous co-worker of Cooley’s at the accounting firm of Coopers and Lybrand, Steven Rector, is also potentially a principal in my RICO action.  Rector according to the WA State of Board of Accountancy was previously licensed as a CPA.  Rector  “retired” his license in 2004.  Rector is currently serving as the secretary-treasurer of the Cowles Co.  

The CI told me that Gavin Cooley was the principal negotiator for the City of Spokane in reaching the RPS Settlement Agreement that was eventually approved by the Spokane City Council.  A copy of this agreement is attached as Exhibit 12.  Rector was representing the Cowles Co in these negotiations.  According to the CI the RPS settlement was brokered by Cooley, Attorney Laurel Siddoway and Steve Rector.  This is in part corroborated by Cooley’s deposition in the successful civil bond fraud case brought by Attorney Gary Ceriani on behalf of the institutional bond investors.  This deposition is attached as Exhibit 13.  See also the deposition by Steve Rector in this same case attached as Exhibit 14.
This RPS Settlement Agreement in my opinion goes beyond the pale and is clear evidence that this settlement was not only a fraud but also a criminal extortion by the complicit persons of a criminal enterprise as defined in RICO, to conceal their crimes from public exposure.  It is clear to me that Spokane's elected and appointed officials, who in approving this RPS settlement agreement acted against the interests of the Citizens of Spokane to avoid exposure for their criminal acts. See Camas, “A New RPS Fraud?” (Exhibit 15).


Attorney Laurel Siddoway is my opinion is also a principal who aided and abetted others in carrying out this new fraud, the RPS Settlement Agreement.  Siddoway knew that Gary Ceriani, whose case was bought out by the City of Spokane, was adamant that this fraud case needed to go to trial.  After the City of Spokane bought Ceriani’s case it retained him to pursue the Cowles Co et al for fraud.  The Cowles Co was threatening to bankrupt its LLC that controlled the RPS Development. Siddoway should have known that any such a bankruptcy action by the Cowles Co would be found to be a false filing to benefit the Cowles Co.  Steven Rector the secretary-treasurer of the Cowles Co was saying that the RPS Development was losing money.  The Cowles Co has a previous record of keeping two sets of books.  In my RICO Case Summary (See Exhibit 3) Rex Franklin a RPS Parking Garage manager said:

The owners were unwilling to spend any more money on the garage even though they were fully aware that these barriers were failing at the rate of one to three per year according former garage manger Rex Franklin.  The owners ordered Franklin to keep two sets of books – one to fraudulently show that the existing garage was operating in the black and the other to track its real losses ( a classic sign of a con or fraud. Franklin would later testify to this in his explosive civil deposition in the wrongful death civil action by the Savage family.
It should be noted The Cowles Co was sternly warned by the court in a later civil suit brought by a former manager of RPS, Bob Robideaux, against the Cowles Co that such a threat of bankruptcy of the RPS LLC would be a bad faith filing.  See the letter by former Sheriff Tony Bamonte to the Editor of the Spokesman-Review owned by the Cowles Co:

. . . According to documents filed in the county clerk’s office on April 23, 2007, Robideaux won a judgment against the various Cowles enterprises in the amount, including interest, of close to $9 million. Within the text of this suit, the court has mentioned, in strong language, such things as "the bankruptcy 

was not filed in good faith;" "It is apparent that the bankruptcy was filed at the behest of and for the benefit of Cowles Publishing as the real client;" "the facts underlying the Debtor’s bankruptcy, which were well known to the Debtor and Witherspoon, satisfied every element of a bad faith filing;" 

Sheriff Bamonte’s letter is attached as Exhibit 16.  Sheriff Bamonte sent a similar letter to Stacey Cowles the publisher of the Spokesman-Review.
Siddoway did not disclose to the City Council, Ceriani’s strong objection to the RPS Settlement Agreement as brokered by Cooley, Siddoway and Rector.  See the explosive email to Siddoway from Ceriani that she did not disclose to the City Council in Shook’s reporting, “A New RPS Fraud” (See Exhibit 15). Ceriani told Siddoway:

[image: image1.png]Lauri, I just saw these emails a few moments ago so I probably haven't given the concept
the thought it deserves BUT, having said that, my initial reaction is that just dismissing
the claims against the developers makes no sense to me. I don’t understand why, when
confronted with the threat to file BK because the City is asserting claims, the City would
respond by just dismissing those claims. From both a trial and a PR standpoint, isn’t the
City better off calling Betsy’s bet? Ifit’s a bluff, we lose nothing. Even if it is not and she
actually files BK, what have you lost that you wouldn’t have just voluntarily given up if
you just dismiss the claims? If nothing else, the City would get the satisfaction of Betsy’s
having publicly, and as a matter of indisputable record, used the BK process to renege on
what everyone knows is a Cowles obligation. I suspect it’s too late to teach her any
humility but the historical fact is ammunition that could be used the next time the
Cowles come to the city acting as if the City coffers and bonding capacity are their

personal pocketbook.



. . . [image: image2.png]One final comment for whatever its worth. You have basically a month before trial. 1
think you should give all the Defendants a deadline of some kind-—no later than next
week—beyond which you and Cillo will focus solely and exclusively on trial preparation.
Let someone other than the two of you (Mike is the obvious choice) handle all settlement
discussions so the two of you can stay focused on the trial. Then go try the damn thing.




The very damning evidence of fraud in Ceriani's civil depositions would have been exposed at trial. The criminal complicity of all those involved would be laid bare for all to see.  Siddoway by her actions was not representing the interests of the Citizen of Spokane but was protecting certain Spokane officials from likely criminal prosecution.  
The Washington State Bar Association found otherwise in a bar complaint filed against Siddoway saying she had only a duty to report to the Mayor John Powers and Mayor Jim West and not the City Council.    Cooley spoke in favor of Siddoway’s actions in a deposition in the WSBA’s investigation – attached as Exhibit 17.  See section 8:

In conclusion, it is my opinion that Ms. Siddoway did an excellent job informing the City Council of the proposed settlement with the bondholders during and prior to the City Council meeting on April 12, 2004, . . .

Gavin Cooley and Steve Rector aided and abetted Siddoway in carrying out this new fraud that in essence concealed and compounded the first RPS bond fraud. Siddoway in my opinion lied by omission in her deposition to the WSBA – see her deposition at section 10 attached as Exhibit 18.  Siddoway failed to directly answer the question if she had withheld Ceriani’s memo from the City Council but by her lengthy answer this was the implication.  Further Siddoway states that, “. . . Indeed, I did not know Mr. Ceriani opposed the settlement until Larry Shook . . . forwarded to me an article in July 2007, nearly three years later, making that claim.”  Apparently the WSBA did not press Siddoway to be more responsive to its questions in its investigation. 

Siddoway’s deposition should be read in conjunction with Camas report, “A New RPS Fraud?” (See Exhibit 15):

Rodgers knew that Ceriani's case against the River Park Square developer alone was worth $26 million. That's how much Cowles real estate companies made on the bonds' sale. And yet, under terms of the settlement, when all the 

concessions to the developer were figured in, by Rodger's calculation the developer paid less that $400,000 to settle. She says the city council was told repeatedly by the city's lawyers that Ceriani recommended this settlement [Emphasis added]

Rodgers contacted Ceriani and asked how he could have made such a recommendation. The answer was simple, said Ceriani: he didn't. He was outraged by the suggestion that he had. It sullied his firm's reputation as a representative of securities fraud victims. 
Ceriani forwarded to Rodgers an e-mail he had sent the city that supported his contention. In the e-mail, Ceriani recommended that the city try its case. After all, Spokane's taxpayers had paid a lot of money for it [Emphasis added].
Siddoway’s deposition to the WSBA should also be read in conjunction with Camas report, “Correcting Camas” – see Exhibit 19:

But Ceriani's withheld November 29, 2004 email scoffed at the Cowles threat of bankruptcy and urged Siddoway and the city to call the developer's bluff. Months after the settlement was approved, Rodgers contacted the Denver lawyer to try to confirm what Rodgers claims Siddoway told her-that Ceriani supported the settlement. Ceriani responded by sending her his 
11/29/04 email. Rodgers shared this with her fellow council members as soon as she got it. Her public presentation of the email took place at her last council meeting in December 2005 [Emphasis added]

"Laurel Siddoway betrayed the taxpayers of Spokane and misled my city council colleagues and me into believing that Gary Ceriani supported the city's settlement with the RPS developer," says Rodgers.

. . . On August 16th, I [Shook] received a letter from Siddoway categorically denying Rodger's allegation that, in response to a question about Ceriani's view of the settlement, Siddoway told her and other council members that Ceriani supported it.

"Neither I nor any member of my firm told the City Council or any of its members that Mr. Ceriani or his partners had approved the settlement terms," claimed Siddoway [Emphasis added].

After I [Shook] received Siddoway's August 16, 2007 letter I emailed the entire Spokane City Council asking if Siddoway had told them that Ceriani supported the settlement with the RPS developer. Only three council members responded: then-councilwoman Mary Verner, and councilmen Bob Apple and Joe Shogan.

Councilman Shogan said he didn't remember what Siddoway said about Ceriani's position on the settlement with developer Betsy Cowles, but that he had never seen the Ceriani email advising against the settlement until a year after the fact when Councilwoman Rodgers presented it.

Councilman Apple was unequivocal. When asked if Siddoway told the council that Ceriani supported the Cowles settlement before the council voted on it, he said: "Yes, she did." [Emphasis added]

Like Councilman Shogan, Mayor Verner said she doesn't remember what Siddoway said about Ceriani's views on the settlement. But, also like Shogan, she says she had not seen Ceriani's email until Rodgers presented it. Verner says she was upset to learn of the email's existence so long after the settlement vote.


"It was actually kind of a visceral reaction," she told me. "I actually felt sick at my stomach. I remember thinking, 'Oh, my word. Great time for us to see this.' At the time Cherie presented that, what we had in front of us was basically a technicality."

Rodgers disagrees that her, and the council's, tardy discovery of the Ceriani legal advice is a mere technicality. She considers it evidence that Siddoway, in clear violation of her professional duty as a lawyer, allowed her client--the city-to settle its securities fraud case against the developer in a way that both contradicted the advice of one of its other lawyers (Ceriani) and caused millions of dollars of losses to Spokane's taxpayers [Emphasis added].
Had the WSBA known the full import of this settlement agreement and cooption/corruption of the parties behind the scenes perhaps it may have found otherwise and taken action against Siddoway.

Based on the information obtained during my investigation, I find it highly unlikely that the use of “Gavin Cooley, CPA, Chairman” on the City’s website was a mere oversight that has gone unnoticed for some three years.  I believe Gavin Cooley allowed his CPA license to “tactically” lapse to avoid possible censure/disciplinary action.  Such action could include permanently enjoining him from practicing as a CPA and barring him from having responsibility for the management and auditing of public funds.

Based on my training and experience I believe based on the foregoing that there is strong probable cause to believe that Gavin Cooley knowingly violated RCW 18.04.345.  Cooley, by allowing his CPA license to expire is no longer constrained by the professional ethics of CPAs and subject to regulation under state and federal law. Cooley either knowingly or tacitly allowed the letters “CPA” to appear after his name on the City of Spokane Treasury Department’s webpage.  The effect of which misleads bond agents, bond investors, and bond raters alike. Cooley in his deference to this criminal enterprise allows it to continue. This criminal enterprise will likely commit further frauds that will yet again victimize the citizens of Spokane if it is not destroyed.

I, Ronald J. Wright, declare under penalty of perjury that the following is true to the best of my knowledge.

_______________________________________   

Ronald J. Wright                                  Date
